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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
To the Members,
On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the Tenth Director’s Report together with
the Audited Financial Statements of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited (“the Company”)

for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW:

In line with the work and ecosystem created by our parent company named Northern Arc Capital Limited,
Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited ("NAIM” or “the Company”) facilitates investments
that ensure easy access-to-finance for companies that have a demonstrable track record in increasing the
penetration of financial services in India. Our investment strategy is centred around making impact-oriented
yet returns-focused investments in several key financial inclusion themed sectors, such as Microfinance,
Affordable Housing, Small Business Loans, Vehicle Loans, Agri-business Loans and Corporate Finance. NAIM
presents sustainable solutions to investors through our funds, by providing multiple investment strategies
(single/multi-sector focus), varying tenures (ranging from 3.5 years to 10 years) and liquidity preferences
(regular coupon pay-outs or bullet payments).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The financial performance of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is summarised as
below:

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars As on March 31, As on March 31,

2023 2022

Income 4038.45 3088.87
Less: Expenditure 2876.30 1885.08
Gross profit before depreciation 1162.15 1203.79
Less: Depreciation for the year 5.24 5.19
PBT (Profit/(Loss) before Tax) 1156.91 1198.6
Less: Provision for tax (Current year) 292.61 327.45
Less: Deferred tax (48.54) (19.66)
PAT (Profit/(Loss) after Tax) 912.84 890.81
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Profit brought forward from previous year 3395.76 2587.21
Less: Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve - (65.00)
Less: F'{e(.:las.s.iﬁcation of remeasurement of net defined (10.97) (17.26)
benefit liability
Balance carried forward to balance sheet 4297.63 3395.76

SUMMMARY OF OPERATIONS:

During the year under review, the net revenue from operations of your Company is Rupees () 4,038.45 lakhs
as against the previous year Rupees () 3088.87 lakhs.

For Financial Year 2022-23, your Company’s Profit after Tax stood at Rupees () 912.84 lakhs vis-a-vis a Profit
after Tax of Rupees (X) 890.81 Lakhs in the previous year.

The net worth of your Company as on March 31, 2023 stood at Rupees (%) 4,658.63 lakhs as against Rupees
(X) 3756.76 lakhs as on March 31, 2022.

Your Company does not have any subsidiary or an associate company or a joint venture company during the
financial year 2022-23.

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of your Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year and date of this report. We also hereby confirm that there
has been no change in the nature of business of your Company.

DIVIDEND:

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2023.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

There was no amount proposed to be transferred to the reserves. For complete details on movement in
Reserves and Surplus during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 please refer to the Statement of
Changes in Equity included in the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

Authorised Share Capital:

The authorised share capital of your Company as on March 31, 2023 was X 20,00,00,000/- (i.e. Rupees
Twenty Crores only) categorised into equity share capital of X 5,00,00,000/- (i.e. Rupees Five Crores only)
divided into 5,00,000 equity shares of X 100/- each and preference share capital of X 15,00,00,000/- (i.e.
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Rupees Fifteen Crores only) divided into 15,00,000 preference shares of X 100/- each.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital:

The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital share capital of your Company as on March 31, 2023 was X
3,61,00,000/- (ie. Rupees Three Crores Sixty-One Lakhs only) divided into 3,61,000 equity shares of X 100/-

each.

During the year under review, your Company has not issued any further shares.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS / BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:

FY23 proved to be a year of resilience as NAIM successfully navigated significant external challenges such
as reduced system liquidity, changes in MLD taxation structure and AIF and PMS regulatory changes. FY23
saw NAIM bolster its exit track record by delivering three fund exits taking the total to 5 out of 8 closed
ended funds. NAIM closed FY23 with cumulative investor commitments of ~INR (%) 5,000 crore and
launched its tenth AIF with total investments of INR (%) 6,680 crores across sectors and expanded its investor
base to 700+ investors. We added 370+ new investors across corporates, family offices, high net worth
individuals, global and domestic funds, and development finance institutions, highlighting the growing
recognition and trust in our platform.

Fund raising and deployment picked up steam, as the economy started recovering from the COVID-19
impact in the last quarter of FY22. But the surplus liquidity started depleting from the first quarter of FY23,
leading to a rise in short term borrowing rates and a fall in long term borrowing rates. The economy also
witnessed a steady increase in the repo rates which led to a rise in the rates of G-Sec and AAA rated
securities. This wave however did not percolate down to the lower rated securities and led to compression
of credit spread. The anticipation of a recession in the first world countries along with volatile
macroeconomic conditions in India, led to a funding crunch across the start-up space. With the changed
landscape, fund raising investments slowed in the first half of the year.

NAIM completed the setup of its first ever offshore office based out of GIFT City, paving the way to increased
dollar denominated AUM inflows from offshore investors and HNIs. In terms of new offerings, NAIM
completed the first close of the Northern Arc Emerging Corporate Bond Fund in Nov-22, This marked the
first fund to invest in mid and small-size corporates, thereby broadening NAIM’s investment capabilities
beyond financial institutions. We also received the in-principal approval for its first ever Separately
Managed Accounts for a ticket size of INR (X) 120 crore. The Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund
continued to remain our flagship fund, providing a viable alternative for investors to park their short-term
funds (3-6 months) with a target return of 9-10%. The Fund achieved a peak AUM of INR (X) 1,395 crore in
Jan-23 and maintained an Average AUM of INR (X) 1250 crore in FY23.

Within the Portfolio Management Services platform, NAIM launched Northern Arc Income Builder - Series
B, the Second Discretionary PMS portfolio of Listed Principal Protected MLDs with a target size of INR (X)
175 crore. The Non-Discretionary PMS portfolio was also launched, providing investors with a curated set
of investments, diversification benefits, easy exit options, superior risk adjusted returns and the advantage
of Northern Arc's specialized asset management and high touch monitoring.
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FY23 continued to be the year of accolades, as our accomplishments were recognized and celebrated across
various platforms. NAIM made it to the ImpactAssets50 list (an annual showcase featuring fifty fund
managers from across the world who led their respective fields in creating positive social impact, while
generating financial returns for investors) consecutively for the third year in FY23. NAIM was yet again
featured in the '‘Most Consistent Top Performing Private Debt Fund Manager' list by Preqin, while Asia Asset
Management awarded us the “Best House for Alternatives-India”. Further, NAIM won the prestigious 'Social
Impact Award' at the IVCA Conclave 2023, marking another significant milestone in our journey.

All these recognitions from international and domestic forums, are a true testimony of the extensive
underwriting expertise, innovative approach, and thought leadership in that NAIM brings about in its target
sectors. They further reinforce the belief that NAIM is a unique debt AIF platform delivering superior risk-
adjusted returns to investors while creating positive social impact.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, there has been no change in the composition of the Board of Directors of
your Company.

All the Directors of your Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified for being appointed as
Directors as specified under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Executive Directors:

During the year, the members at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of your Company held on 6
May 2022 had appointed Dr. Kshama Fernandes as the Whole-Time Director of your Company designated
as Executive Chairperson (who was earlier a non-executive director) with effect from 1°t April 2022 for a
period of 3 years, liable to retire by rotation and terms of her remuneration were also approved at the said
EGM.

Non-Executive Directors:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association
of your Company, Mr. Ashish Mehrotra (DIN: 07277318) Non-Executive Director, is liable to retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

Necessary resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Ashish Mehrotra has been included in the Notice convening
the AGM. The brief resume of Mr. Ashish Mehrotra and other related information have been detailed in the
Notice convening the AGM of your Company. Your Directors recommend his re-appointment as Non-
Executive Director of your Company.

Independent Director:

Mr. Theodoor Brouwers (DIN: 08261000) Independent Director, has submitted the declaration stating that
6
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he meets the criteria of independence as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of
the Board, the Independent Director fulfil the conditions specified under the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules
made thereunder and is independent of the management.

Mr. Theodoor Brouwers also confirmed that in terms of Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, he has registered himself with the Independent Director’s database

as prescribed under the Act.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the financial year Ms. Devanshi Jayantilal Shah (Membership No.: A65481) was appointed as the
Company Secretary of your Company on 2" November, 2022, pursuant to the resignation of Ms. Nrithya
Murali Ganam (Membership No.: A38778) with effect from 5" May, 2022. Such appointment was in
accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of Association
of your Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year under review, 4 (Four) Board meetings were held on 5" May, 2022, 25% July, 2022, 2™
November, 2022 and 7*" February, 2023.

The details pertaining to attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board of Directors held during
the financial year 2022-23 are mentioned below:

Sr. |Name of the Director Nature of Directorship Number of Board Meetings
No.
Held during | Attended
tenure
1 |Dr. Kshama Fernandes Whole-time Director / 4 4
Executive Chairperson
2 | Mr. Ashish Mehrotra Non- Executive Director 4 4
3 |[Mr. Chaitanya Pande Non- Executive Director 4 4
4 | Mr. Nicholas Moon Non- Executive Director 4 2
5 |Mr. Theodoor Brouwers Independent Director 4 4

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Your company is not mandatorily required under Section 177 of the Companies Act read with Companies
(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 to constitute an Audit Committee. However, your company has
constituted an Audit Committee as a measure of good governance.

The Audit Committee met 4 times during the financial year 2022-23 on 5% May, 2022, 25% July, 2022, 2™
November, 2022 and 7% February, 2023.

The composition of the Committee along with the details of the meetings held and attended by the members
of the Committee during the financial year 2022-23 are as under:

Number of Meetings
Sr. Name of the Director Held during | Attended
No. tenure
1 Dr. Kshama Fernandes — Executive Chairperson 4 4
2 Mr. Theodoor Brouwers — Independent Director 4 4
3 Mr. Chaitanya Pande — Non-Executive Director 4 4
4 Mr. Ashish Mehrotra — Non-Executive Director 4 4

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014, your Company has constituted a CSR Committee with the following members
of the Board as its members:

Designation in the CSR
Name DIN Committee
Dr. Kshama Fernandes, Executive Chairperson 02539429 Chairperson
Mr. Chaitanya Pande, Non-Executive Director 06934810 Member
Mr. Theodoor Brouwers, Independent Director 08261000 Member

Northern Arc Capital Limited (your Company’s holding company) along with its subsidiaries (Northern Arc
Group) is committed to making a direct contribution to society as a part of its Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) agenda. The Northern Arc Group has launched Northern Arc Foundation, a Section 8 company which
shall focus on building livelihood, skill and vocational development of communities traditionally
marginalized by formal systems, enhancing people’s well-being through knowledge building and innovation.
The foundation will also focus on other charitable and socially beneficial purposes related to education and
other training and development initiatives. The Northern Arc group shall contribute to CSR through the
Northern Arc Foundation.

The Northern Arc Group has also formulated a CSR policy in line with the provisions of Section 135 read with
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.
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For the FY 2022-23, an amount of X 15,78,206/- had been earmarked for the CSR budget, being 2% of the
average of the net profits of the preceding three financial years.

In accordance with the CSR Policy and as a part of CSR initiative, the Board of Directors of your Company,
basis the recommendation received from CSR Committee had approved the spending of an amount up to
Rupees (X) 15,80,000/- through Northern Arc Foundation, towards the project “Food Heals Program” of
Cuddles Foundation for capacity building, caregiver program, counselling, assessment and nutrition
management cost etc. The said amount of Rupees X 15,80,000/- was entirely disbursed and spent during the
FY 2022-23 by Cuddles Foundation.

There was an unspent CSR amount being carried forward in the previous financial years’ financials amounting
to approx. X 3.25 lakhs in respect of which your Company had during the year under review contributed X 3.5
lakhs towards Sparsh Hospice, which duly met the criteria to be eligible for CSR spends as per Companies Act,
2013.

The Annual Report on CSR Activities is enclosed as per prescribed format as ‘Annexure I’ and forms part of
this report.

VOTING RIGHTS NOT EXERCISED DIRECTLY BY EMPLOYEES:
— Not applicable

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS REPORT:

The Shareholders of your Company had appointed M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No: 101049W/E300004) as the Statutory Auditors of your Company at
their EGM held on 10 January 2022 for a period of 1 year i.e. FY 2021-22 to fill the casual vacancy caused
by the resignation of the earlier Statutory Auditors viz. M/s. B S R & Co LLP, due to regulatory change on
maximum tenure of statutory auditors.

During the year under review, in accordance with the provisions of section 139, section 141, section 142
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and on the basis of recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of your
Company, M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAl Firm Registration No:
101049W/E300004) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of your Company by the shareholders of your
Company at the Nineth Annual General Meeting (AGM), for a term of 5 (five) financial years, to hold office
until the conclusion of the AGM to be held for the financial year ending on March 31, 2027, subject to their
continuity of fulfilment of the applicable eligibility norms, on such remuneration as may be decided by the
Board of Directors based on the recommendation of Audit Committee. M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
had confirmed that they were not disqualified to be appointed as statutory auditor in terms of the
provisions of the Act read with rules made thereunder.

COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR
DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE AUDITOR IN THE REPORT:

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse comments or disclaimer made by the Statutory
Auditors, M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, in their audit report.
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The Statutory Auditors of your Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The details of related party transactions as required to be disclosed under Accounting Standards forms part
of the notes to the financial statements provided in this annual report. During the year under review, there
are no contracts or arrangements entered into with related parties as referred to in Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, which require disclosure in Form AOC-2, hence disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not
applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Your Company had not given any loans or guarantee or provided any security to its directors or any other
person in whom the director is interested. Neither had it granted any loans, secured or unsecured, given
guarantee or provided any security to any other body corporate. Your Company had not acquired by way
of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate except investment as a
sponsor contributor in the alternative investment funds managed by it.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

Your Company keeps the Board informed periodically of the significant risks associated with the business of
the Company and the various risk identification and mitigation processes put in place by the management.
In the opinion of the Board, your Company has developed and implemented risk management procedures
that are sufficient to combat risks that may threaten the existence of your Company. The enterprise risk
management framework has also been adopted by your Board and is also subject to review from time to
time.

The framework lays down the principles for risk management, identifies specific risks that your Company
faces, categorises such risks in order of severity and impact, and prescribes the guidelines for managing,

reporting and tracking such risks.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

In the last financial year, the completeness and adequacy of internal financial controls of your Company was
evaluated by an independent audit agency and report of the same has been shared with the Statutory
Auditors of your Company. During FY 2022-23, the internal financial controls were tested and presented to
the Audit Committee for its review. The Audit Committee has reviewed the internal financial controls and
stated that the controls were adequate and were operating effectively.

DEPOSITS:
During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits as covered under Chapter V of
the Companies Act, 2013 within the meaning of Sections 73 and 74 read together with the Companies

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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ANNUAL RETURN:

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the annual return (in the prescribed Form MGT-7)
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 is placed on your Company’s website at
https://www.northernarcinvestments.com/statutory-compliances/.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Your Company has 21 employees on its payroll as at March 31, 2023. Further, your Company does not offer
stock options to any of its directors/employees.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

Your Company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual and
endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including
sexual harassment. During the year under review, your Company has not received any complaints pertaining
to sexual harassment. Your Company has also complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

Since, the operation of your Company are not energy intensive, there is nothing specific for your Company
to disclose with respect to the conservation of energy and technology absorption in terms of Section 134(3)(m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014. However, adequate measures have
been initiated for conservation of energy wherever possible.

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the period under review. The foreign exchange outgoings
were Rupees X 212.40 Lakhs/-.

Details of forex outgoing is as follows in X:

Professional Charges 190.60
Subscription 11.17
Director Sitting Fee 10.63
Total 212.40

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATION IN FUTURE:

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
going concern status and operations of your Company in future.
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OTHER DISCLOSURES:

There was no revision in the financial statements of your Company.

Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to your Company.

Your Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 during the year.

There was no one time settlement entered into with any Bank or financial institutions in respect of any
loan taken by your Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) accounting policies were selected and applied consistently and reasonable prudent judgments and
estimates were made so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company at the
end of March 31, 2023 and of the profit and loss of your Company for that period;

(c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of your Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

(d) the annual accounts of your Company have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

(e) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCES:

Your Company has complied with all the applicable regulatory requirements of compliances as required
under the Company law, SEBI Circulars, various tax statutes as well as the relevant statutory requirements as
specified by the other concerned regulatory bodies.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS COMPLIANCES:

Your Company is in compliance with provisions of the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India in terms of the Companies Act, 2013.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Northern Arc Capital (the company’s holding company) along with its subsidiaries (Northern Arc Group)
is committed to making a direct contribution to society as a part of its Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) agenda.

The Northern Arc Group has launched Northern Arc Foundation, a section 8 company which shall focus
on building livelihood, skill and vocational development of communities traditionally marginalized by
formal systems, enhancing people’s well-being through knowledge building and innovation. The
foundation will also focus on other charitable and socially beneficial purposes related to education and
other training and development initiatives. The Northern Arc group shall contribute to CSR through the
Northern Arc Foundation.

The Company’s CSR policy is in line with the provisions of Section 135 read with Schedule VII of the

Companies Act, 2013. The complete CSR policy of the Company can be accessed on the Company’s
website at https://www.northernarcinvestments.com/.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted a CSR Committee with the following members:

No. of .
. No. of meetings
meetings of
of CSR
Nature of CSR -
Sr. . . . . - Committee
. Designation | Directorship Committee
No. | Name of Director . attended
held during during the vear
the year uring Y
1 Dr. Kshama Fernandes Chairperson | Non-Executive 0 0
Director
2 | Mr. Chaitanya Pande Member Non-Executive 0 0
Director
3 | Mr. Theodoor Brouwers Member Independent 0 0
Director

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
Board are disclosed on the website of the company:

https://www.northernarcinvestments.com/statutory-compliances/

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the

report):

Not Applicable.
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b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 15,78,206/-

c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial

years: Nil

d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d): Rs. 15,78,206/-

. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):

Rs.15,80,000/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs.15,80,000/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year.

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred
to Unspent CSR Account

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VIl as per second proviso to

(in Rs.) as per section 135(6) section 135(5)
Amount. Date of Name of Amount. Date of
transfer. the Fund transfer.
Rs. 15,80,000/- NIL NIL
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL
Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Rs)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 15,78,206/-
per section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 15,80,000/-
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 1,794/-
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes NIL
or activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial NIL
years [(iii)-(iv)].
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7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sr Precedin | Amount Balance | Amount | Amount transferred | Amount | Defici
No | g transferred | Amount Spentin |[to a Fund as |remaini | ency,
Financial | to Unspent | in the specified under | ng to be | if any
Year CSR Unspent | Financi | Schedule VIl as per | spent in
Account CSR al Year | second proviso to | succeed
under Account | (in Rs) sub-section (5) of ing
section 135 | under section 135, if any | Financia
(6) section Amount | Amount |l Years
(in Rs.) 135(6) (in Rs) (in Rs) (in Rs)
(in Rs.)
1 2019-20 -
2 2020-21
3 2021-22
Total

8. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: NIL

Short Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of
particulars  of[Pincode Amount of |the registered owner
the property or|®" thelp o oficsr
ﬁlro asset(s) Property|  eation |amount

[inCIUding or Spent CSR

complete asset(s) Registration .

addressand Number, if Name Registered address

location of the applicable

property]

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board

Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

SD/-

Kshama Fernandes

Director
DIN: 02539429

Date:

Place:

09.05.2023
Mumbai

SD/-

Chaitanya
Director

Pande

DIN: 06934810
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the “Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Board of Director’s report included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Directors’ Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. When we read the Directors’ Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

SR, Bathbor & Associates LLP, a Lirited Lianility Partnerstup with LLP Identity Mo, AAB-4295
Reqgd. Office | 22, Camac Street, Block "B, 3rd Froor, Kolkata 700 016
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS} specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except that the back-up of the books of account and
other books and papers maintained in electronic made has not been maintained on servers physically
located in India on a daily basis, as stated in note 34 to the financial statements;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) This report does not include Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3

(8)

of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Report on internal financial controls’), since in our
opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the said report on internal
financial controls is not applicable to the Company basis the exemption available to the Company
under MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13, 2017, read with corrigendum dated July 13,
2017 on reporting on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2023;

(h) The adverse remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith

(i)

are as stated in the paragraph (b) above; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 27 to the financial statements;
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iii.

vi.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 34 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 34 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsocever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause {a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company; and

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101045W/E300004

bt —

per Bharath N §

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: 23210934BGYILT7851
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: May 9, 2023
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our report of even date

Re: Northern Arc Investment Manager Private Limited (the “Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:

(i) (a){A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including  quantitative details

and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(ii)(a)

Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

There is no immovable property, held by the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3{(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate

(iii) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of
current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liahility
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(e)

(f)

{iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

{wiii)

(ix)(a)

(b)

{c)
(d)

(e)

() (a)

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed,
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, income-tax and goods and services tax. The provisions relating to
employees’ state insurance, service tax, sales tax, value added taxes, duty of customs, wealth tax,
and duty of excise are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax
and goods and services tax at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, income tax, cess, goods and service tax
and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The provisions
of employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, customs duty, value added tax, duty of customs,
wealth tax, and duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clauses 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3{x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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(b)

(xi)(a)

(b)

(xii)

(iii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

{xvii)

{xviii)

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable
to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar
as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis which is commensurate
with the size of the Company and nature of its business though it is not required to have an internal
audit system under Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi){a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
previous preceding year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix)

(xx)(a)

(xx)(b)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note
23.4 to the financial statements,

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 23.4 to the financial statements

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number:; 101043W / E300004

W

per Bharath N §

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: 23210934BGYILT7851
Place of signature: Chennai
Date: May 9, 2023




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

r . As at Asat
Particulars Note
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 4 0.12 533
Financial assets
Investments 5 311367 2.764.23
Current tax assets (net) [} 463.80 92 48
Total non-current assets 3,579.59 2.862.07
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 5 219,84 1.874.80
Other financial assets 7 530.65 234.19
Trade receivables 8 901.61 9224
Cash and cash equivalents 9 30.80 122,99
Other current assets 10 711.51 772.68
Total current assets 2,394.41 3,096.89
Total assets 5.974.00 5,958.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital il 361.00 361.00
Other equity X 12 4.297.63 3.395.76
Total equity 4,638.63 3,756.76
Liabilitics
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13 - 1,225.95
Provisions 14 136.72 67.76
Deferred tax habilities (net) 24 20.02 7226
Total non-current liabilities 156.74 1,365.97
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13 169.43 163.93
Trade payables 15
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 38444 186.57
Other financial liabilities 16 447 58 359.12
Other current liabilities 17 12952 112.99
Provisions 14 27.66 13.61
Total current liabilities 1,158.63 §36.22
Total equity and liabilities 5,974.00 5,958.95
Significant accounting policies 2and 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Aceowntants Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101049W/E300004 CIN: UT4120TN2014PTC095064
P 4
y /4
3 N7
per Bharath N § Ashish¥ Kshama Fernandes Ravi Vukkadala
Partner Director Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership No, 210934 DIN:02539429
Place : Chennai
Date : May 9, 2023 N\/
Devanshi Shah @/leysnasu ndaram C
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No, A635481
Place : Mumbai Place: Chennai

Date - May 9, 2023 Date : May 9. 2023




Northern Are Investment Managers Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i : Year ended Year ended
Particulars Not
TR o Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022
REVENUE
Revenue from operations 18 4.034.78 3.088.87
Other income 19 3.67 -
Total income 4,038.45 3,088.87
EXPENSES
Employee benefit expenses 20 996.90 728.53
Finance costs 2] 89.05 213.77
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 5.24 5.19
Other expenses 23 1,790.35 942.75
Total expenses 2,881.54 1,890.27
Profit before tax 1,156.91 1,198.60
Tax expense
Current tax 24 32043 32745
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (27.82) -
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 24 (48.54) (19.66)
244.07 307.79
Profit after tax 912.84 890.81
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset/ (liability) (14.66) (23.07)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 3.69 581
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified (10.97) (17.26)
subsequently to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year (10.97) (17.26)
Total comprehensive income for the year 901.87 ; 873.55
Earnings per equity share (Face Value - INR 100/ Share) 32
Earnings per equity share
Basic (in rupees) 252.86 246.76
Diluted (in rupees) 252.86 246.76
Significant accounting policies 2and 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for 5.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101049W/E300004 Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
CIN: UT4120TN2014PTC095064 A
per Bharath N § ASHist¥lehrotra Kshama Fernandes Ravi Vukkadala
Partner Director Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership No. 210934 DIN:07277318 DIN:02539429
Place : Chennai
Date : May 9, 2023
Devanshi Shah Kalyanasundaram C
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. A65481
Place : Mumbai Place; Chennai

Date : May 9, 2023 Date : May 9, 2023




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in fakhs. unless otherwise stated)

. ! Year ended Year ended
eartieains s March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1.136.9] 1,198.60
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5.24 SoHe
Unrealised gain on alternative investment funds designated at fair value through profit or loss (121.37) {38.76)
Interest expense on tenn loan 89.05 213,77
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,129.83 1,358.80
Changes in working capital;
{Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (809.37) 26821
{Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (296 .46) (42.83)
Decrease / (Increase) in-other non-financial assets 61.17 (481.72)
Decrease / (Increase) in Investinents 1.424,89 (264.76)
Decrease / (Increase) in rade payables 197.87 (105.84)
Increase / {decrease) in Other financial liabilities BB435 168.12
Increase / (decrease) in Other non-financial Habilities 99.53 (15.60)
Cash generated from operations 1,895.91 884.38
Income taxes paid (Net) (678.60) {395.04)
Net Cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 1,217.31 489,34
B Cash flows fy investin ivities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment - (10.53)
Net cash {used in) investing activities (B) - (10.53)
€ Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long tenm borrowings 251113 7.571.48
Repayment of long term borrowings (3.731.57) (8.322.00)
Interest paid (89.05) (21377
Net cash (used in) financing activities {C) (1,309.50) (962.29)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (92.19) (483.48)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 122.99 66,46
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30,80 122.99
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents:
Notes to cash flow statement
Note As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
I Components of cash and cash equivalents: 9
Balances with banks *
- in current accounts 30.80 122.99
30,80 122.99

2 The above cashflow statement has been prepared under the "indirect method" as set out in the Ind AS-T on statement of casl

the Companies Act, 2013,

3 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars

Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total

Significant accounting policies
wral part of fi

hilows specified under section 133 of

As at " As at
b Flows
Marchy 20y SR Flews  Nen Cish Clisnges March 31,2023
138988 (1220.45) - 169.43
447.58 (88.46) : 35912
183746 (1,308.91) ? 528.55
2and 3

The notes referred 1o above form an i
As per our report of even date attached

for 5.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
hartered deconnraniy
IC AT Firm's Registration No. 10 1049W/E300004

per Bharath N S
Partner

Place ; Chennai
Date : May 9, 2023

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
CIN: UTH120TN2014PTCO95064

Kshama Fernand e5

Director
DIN:02539429

P

Kalyanasundaram C
Chief Financial Otfficer

Devanshi Shah
Company Secretary
Membership No. A65481

Place: Chennai
Date : May 9, 2023

Place ; Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2023

¥ Vukkadala
Chief Executive Officer




b Arel Mani Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended March 31, 2023
A amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless othern ise stated)

A, Equity Shave Capital

Equity Share capital of INR 100 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Balance as at March 31, 2022

36100

Chasges in equity share capilal dunng the year -
361.00

Changes m equity share capital dunng the vear -
361.00

Balance as at March 31, 2023
B. Other Equity

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Change in equity for the Year ended March 31, 2022

Profit for the vear
Adjustments*

Emplovee stock compensalion expense during the vear

Transler of emplovee siock option reserie
Remeasurement ol net defined benefil liabiliy
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Change in equity for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Profit for the vear

Emplovee stock compensation expense dunng the vear

Transfer of emplovee stock option resene

Tassification of of net defined benefit labilit

Balance as at March 31, 2023

* These relate to cost relating (o ESOP o holding company (o the employees of the Compan relating to earlier

Significant accounting policies (refer note 2 and 3)
The notes referred to above form an inteural part of the financial staterments

As per our report of even date artached

for S.R,Batliboi & Associates LLP
Clartered Acconniants

ICAI Firnv's Registration No - 101045W/E300004

per Bharath N §
Partner
Membership No 210934
Place - Chenna

Date Mav 9. 2023

Reserves and surplus

Total Other Equity

attvibutable to Equity
Shave based payment  Capital Red i Earmings Holders of the Company
TeserVe Reserve
6310 2200 |80 22 1587122
. = HHR] Ko 81
(63 00 - i {63 ()
2503 - - 2513
125.13) - - 2513
- - (1726) t17:26)
- T22.00 267377 339577
- - Y1284 M4
Bl - - BG4
{560 2 y (869}
= - {10.97) {1197
- T22.00 3.575.64 4.297.64
mmmm———e

Devanshi Shah
Company Secretary
Membership Mo, A65481

Place  Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2023

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Northern Arc lnvestment Managers Private Limited
CIN UT4120TN2014PTCO95064

Kshama Fernandes
Director
DIN 02339429

N\/

Kalyanasundaram C
Chief Financial Officer

Place. Chennai
Date May 9, 2023

pertods, thal wsa reimbursed by the Compam and ulilised from the ESOP resen e dunng the FY 2021-22,

.\'ukkndnln

Chief Executive Officer



Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

1 Reporting entity
Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited was incorporated on February 17, 2014, with the aim of carrying on the business of
Investment Company and also to provide portfolio management services to Offshore funds and all kinds of Investment Funds, The company is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Northern Arc Capital Limited. The Company's registered address is No. |. Kanagam Village, 10th Floor 1ITM
Research Park, Taramani Chennai TN 600113.

(¥

Basis of preparation
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act; 2013, (the 'Act'). other relevant provisions of the Act ("Ind AS").

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 9, 2023,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to the
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Division 11 - Schedule llI to the Companies Act, 2013, has been further amended vide Government Notification dated March 24, 2021 to include
certain additional presentation and disclosure requirements and changes to some of the existing requirements. These changes need to be applied in
preparation of financial statements for the financial year commencing on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, these financial statements has been
prepared based on the above requirements.

Details of the Company's accounting policies were disclosed in note 3.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-
off to the nearest Rupees in lakhs (two decimals), unless otherwise indicated.

2.3 Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Investments in Alternative Investment Fund : Fair value .
Liabilities for equity-settled share-based payment arrangements Fair value
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations

2.4 Current and non current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities,

2.5 Usc of cstimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These
estimates, judzments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

i) Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of business model and the solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a
particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of
the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
or fair value through profit and loss that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of
whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there
has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

ii) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded
in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
valuation models. The inputs to these models arc taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is
required in establishing fair values.

iii) Impairment of financial asset

—

a

b
c)

&

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires Judgement. in particular, the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk.
These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s expected credit loss ("ECL") calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the
choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates
include ;

The Company’s criteria for assessing if’ there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should be
measured on a life time expected credit loss ("LTECL") basis.

Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs,

Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs, such as consumer spending, lending interest rates and
collateral values, and the effect on probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD") and loss given default ("LGD"),

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into ECL models,

iv) Provisions and other contingent liabilitics

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be
probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the outflow is considered to be probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent liability is disclosed,

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses. the C ompany takes into account a number of factors
including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents, Significant judgement is required to conclude on these
estimates.

These estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances: Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

v) Other assumptions and estimation uncertainties

a)
b}
)

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;
Recognition of deferred taxes:




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All'amounts are in Indian Rupecs in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

3
3.1

3.1

i)
iii)
33
Al

: -\5fbé‘Q_L1l1tnLctual cash flows collected).

Significant accounting policies

Revenue Recognition

Fee income

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Ind AS 1135 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs.

Step 1: Identify contract(sy with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or
service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behall of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation,
the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects (o be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfics a performance obligation.

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Income from investment in alternative investment fund
Income from investment in alternative investment fund is recognised when the right to receive is established.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured rel iably. This is generally when the sharcholders

approve the dividend

Fund operating fee
Pursuant to the management agreement/ PPM entered by the Company with the fund, C ompany incurs all operating expense on behalf of the fund
and recharges to the fund at the specified % as Fund operating fee,

Financial instrument - initial recognition

Date of recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the C ompany becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing the
instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
FVTPL, transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from this amount.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities
The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured

at either:

Amortised cost

Fair value through other comprehensive income (EVOCT)
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
Business model assessment
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages eroups of financial assets to achieve its business
objective.
The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on
observable factors such as:
a) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the
Company's key management personnel,
b) The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular, the way
those risks are managed,

~¢) How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on

i, o - i i
d\'},’_lgskcxpcctcd frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
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ii)
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B.

-

—

3

=

3.5

A.

B.
i)

i)

Sole Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI test)

As a second step of its classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify whether they meet SPPI test.
‘Principal” for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of
financial asset (for example. if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premiuny discount). The most significant elements of
interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment. the
Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to
a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding.
In such cases. the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Accordingly, financial assets are measured as follows

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order 1o collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of’
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Since, the loans and advances are held to sale and collect contractual cash flows, they
are measured at FVOCI.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
Financial liability

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liability are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
liability, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the
Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions
The Company derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a

new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The
newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the C ompany neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset,

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially moditied, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the
carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected
credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or etfort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis. based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including torward- looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company has taken into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2. or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level | financial instruments: Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or
ligbilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date;

Level 2 financial instruments; Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life, Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and
yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads; and

Level 3 financial instruments: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and
dccumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.11

3.12

ii, Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company.

ili. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives

using the written down value method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

The Company follows estimated useful lives which are given under Part C of the Schedule 11 of the C ompanies Act, 2013. The estimated useful
lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset category Useful Life
Computers and accessories 3 vears
Office equipments 5 years

Depreciation on additions. including transfer assets (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for
use (disposed of),

Impairmeat of non-financial assets

The Company determines periodically whether there is any indication of impairment of the carrying amount of its non-financial assets. The
recoverable amount (higher of net selling price and value in use) is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash
inflow that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. The recoverable amounts of such asset are estimated, if any
indication exists and impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Employee benefits
i. Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plan and are charged as an expense as they fall due based on
the amount of contribution required to be made and when the services are rendered by the emplovees.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method, When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (“the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value
of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised in OCL. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (- past service cost” or
“past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs,

ii. Other long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or receive cash
compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of such
period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit, The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period
in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method.
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3.12 Employee benefits (continued)

313

3.4

iii. Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognized
during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the year in which the employee renders the related service. The cost of such compensated
absences is accounted as under :

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future compensated

absences; and
{b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur,

iv. Employee Stock Option based compensation

The Company accounts for stock options in accordance with the Guidance Note on 'Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments' issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note also applies to grant of stock options of another enterprise in the same group as the
Company. to the employees of the Company.

The Company calculates the compensation cost of the stock options as granted by its holding company based on the grant date fair value of such
options, which is recognized as an employee cxpense, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve / payable to holding company, over the
vesting period on a graded vesting basis. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of options for which the related
service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the
number of options that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if. as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated reliably. and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis,

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a husiness combination or to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used, The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rales that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled. based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting
date. to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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3.15

.16

3.17

3.18

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part
of the cost of the asset. Other borrowings costs are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss account on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Ind AS 33, Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per equity
share is computed by dividing net profit / loss after tax attributable to the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed and disclosed by dividing the net profit/ loss after tax
attributable to the equity share holders for the year after giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non—cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities
of the Company are segregated. Cash flows in foreign currencies are accounted at the actual rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the

transactions.
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3.19

3.20

New and Amended Standards

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1.
2022,

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Commpanis (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022 which
are effective from April 1, 2022,

These amendments do not have material effect on the Financial Statement of the Company.

Standard Issued But Not Yet Effective

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS §

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It
has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policics - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose
their “significant” accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply
the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April I, 2023. Consequential amendments have been made in
Ind AS 107,

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended requirements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12. so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations,
Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101. The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2023.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

4 Property, plant and equipment

Computer and Office -
aceessories equipments katsl

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2021 9 44 0.80 10.24
Additions 10.53 - 10.53
Disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 19.97 0.80 20.77
Balance as at March 31, 2022 19.97 0.80 20.77
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 19.97 0.80 20.77
Depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2021 9.42 0.80 10,22
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 5.19 - 519
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation on disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 14.61 0.80 15.41
Balance as at March 31, 2022 14.61 0.80 15.41
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 5.24 - 524
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation on disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 19.85 0.80 20.65
Net block
As at March 31, 2022 5.35 - 5.35
As at March 31, 2023 0.12 - 0.1

This space is intentionally lefi blank
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
6 Current tax assets (net)
Advance Income tax(net of provision for tax) 463.80 92.48
463.80 92.48
7 Other financial assets
Unsecured, considered good (current)
Other receivables 523.39 230.19
Security deposits 7.26 4.00
530.65 234.19
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
9  Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 30.80 122.99
30.80 122.99
10 Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses 575.48 686.43
Balances with government authoritics 136.03 86.25
Advance to supplier - .
711.51 772.68
11  Share capital
Authorised
500,000 (March 31, 2022: 500.000) equity shares of INR 100/~ each with 500.00 500.00
voting rights
1.500.000 (March 31. 2022: 1,500,000) Redeemable preference Shares of 1,500.00 1,500.00
INR 100 each
2,000.00 2,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
361.000 (March 31. 2022: 361.000) Equity shares of INR 100/- each with 361.00 361.00
voting rights
361.00 361.00
a)  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares
Equity shares !
At the commencement of the year 3.61.000 361.00 3,61,000 361.00
Add: Shares issued during the year o - % 3
Less: Shares cancelled during the
year
At the end of the year 3,61,000 361.00 3,61,000 361.00
b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares

i) Equity shares

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of INR 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

c)

d)

e)

12

a)

b)

c)

Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and /or their subsidiaries / associates:

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares:
Northern Arc Capital Limited 3.61.000 100% 3.61.000 100%
including its nominee share holders
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares:
Northern Arc Capital Limited 3.61.000 100% 3.61.000 100%

including its nominee share holders

Details of shares held by promoters
As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares at
the beginning of
the year

Change during the

Promoter Name
year

No. of shares at the
end of the year

% of Total Shares

Northern Arc Capital Limited 3.61,000 E

As at 31 March 2022

3.61.000 100%

No. of shares at
the beginning of
the year

Change during the

Promoter Name
year

No, of shares at the
end of the year

% of Total Shares

Northern Arc Capital Limited 3.61.000 -

Other equity

3.61.000 100%

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Retained earnings

At the commencement of the year

Add: Profit for the year
Add: Transfer from other comprehensive income

At the end of the year

Capital Redemption Reserve

At the commencement of the year
Add: Additions for the year

At the end of the year
Capital reserve - Employee stock options outstanding account

At the commencement of the year

Add: Employee compensation expense during the year

Add: Employee stock compensation expense during the year
Less: Transfer of employee stock option reserve

Less: Adjustments*

2.673.76 1.800.22
912.84 890.81
(10.97) (17.26)

3,575.63 2,673.76
722.00 722.00
722.00 722.00

. 65.00
8.69 25.13
(8.69) (25.13)

. (65.00)

At the end of the year

*These relate to cost relating to ESOP of holding company to the employees of the Company relating to earlier periods, that will be

reimbursed by the Company are utilised from the ESOP reserve during the FY 2021-22.
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c)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

13

13.

Other comprehensive income

At the commencement of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit asset/ (liability) (refer note (iii) below)

Less: Transfer to Retained carnings
Closing balance

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(10.97) (17.26)
10.97 17.26
4,297.63 3,395.76

Total (a+b+c)

Nature and purpose of reserve

Retained earnings

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss is the accumulated available profit of the Company carried forward from earlier
years. These reserve are free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

Capital Redemption Reserve
The capital redemption reserve was created on account of the redemption of the redeemable preference shares.

Capital Reserve - Employee stock option outstanding

The Company has established various equity settled share based payment plans for certain categories of employees of the
Company.

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilities comprise actuarial gain or loss, return on plan assets excluding interest
and the effect of asset ceiling, if any,

Borrowings
Measured at amortised cost:

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2023

Non-current, Unsecured

Term Loans
- from banks
- from holding company - 1,225.95
- 1,225.95
Current, Unsecured
Term Loans
-Loans from holding company (refer note 31) - -
- Structured Cash credit from holding company 169.43 163.93
169.43 163.93
Details regarding terms of borrowings (from Holding Company )-Unsecured
. Terms of
Particulars 3 Interest rate Interest
Redemption
Term Loan-8 3 years 14.00% 11.84
Term Loan-9 4.3 years 13.00% 12.92
Term Loan-10 6 vears 13.00% 17.45
Term Loan-11 3 months 13.50% 1.65
Structured Cash Credit NA 13.50% 45.19

Interest Rate is fixed and interest payablc on quarterly basis.

During the year the company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to Holding Company.

nai
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14  Provisions
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity
- Compensated absences

Current
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity
- Compensaled absences
Provision towards Corporate Social Responsibility Liability

This space is intentionally left blank

93.77 40.23
42.95 27.53
136.72 67.76
17.73 6.43
9.93 5.51

- 1.68
27.66 13.61
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
16 Other financial liabilities (current)
Employee benefits payable 279.76 200.00
Payable to related parties (also refer note 31) 167.82 159.13
447.58 359.12
17 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 129.52 112.99
129.52 112.99

This space is intentionally left blank




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

18 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contract with customers

Fee income (refer note 31} 2.900.92 231893
Income from investment in Alternative Investment Fund 574,47 62531
Fund operating fee 559.39 144.63
Total 4,034.78 3,088.87

Revenue from customers
-That are recognised over a certain period of time

-That are recognised at a point of time 403478 3.088.87
Geographical Market
-In India 4,034.78 3.088.87
-Outside India - -
19 Other income
Interest on income tax refund 3.67 -
3.67 -
20 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 921.06 66593
Contribution to provident and other funds {refer note 28.1) 49.56 27.74
Share based payments to employees (refer note 29) 8.69 25.13
Gratuity expense (refer note 28.2) 428 593
Staff welfare expenses 13.51 3.82
Total 996.90 728.55

21 Finance Cost (refer note 31)
Interest expenses on

= Term loan 43.86 195,63
- Cash credits 45.19 18.14
Total 89.05 213.77

22 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {refer note 4) 5.24 5.19
Total 5.24 5.19

This space s mtentionatly lefi blank




Northern Are Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
23 Other expenses

Distribution fee expense 527.24 318.08
Legal and professional charges 726.72 419.77

Less: Reimbursement of expense (Refer note 23.1) 24991 476.81 187.00 23278
Loss on sale of investment - 127.13
Rent 76.04 30.19
Corporate social responsibility 17.78 12.68
Traveling and conveyance 39.17 10.77
Net Loss on fair value changes 121.37 38.76
Director sitting fee 22.63 13.52
Communication expenses 279 1.66
Repairs and maintenance 10.46 3.72
Rates and taxes 2.44 0.11
Subscription charges 72.76 40.41
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 23.3 below) 4.02 4.02
Bank Charges 1.22 1.31
Operating expenses of Funds (refer to note 23.2) 409.49 5111
Miscellaneous expenses 6.14 34.51
Total 1,790.35 942,75

23.1 Represents Legal and professional expense incurred on behalf of the following funds and reimbursed to the Company:

Northern Are Capital Limited 204.72 152.75
IFMR Flmpact Long Term Multi Asset Class Fund 11.36 325
IFMR Flmpact Long Term Credit Fund 7.72 1.81
[FMR Flmpact Medium Term Opportunities Fund 11.64 27.38
IFMR Flmpact Income Builder Fund 827 1.82
IFMR Fimpact Medium Term Microfinance Fund 6.19 -
249.91 187.00

23.2 Operating expenses of Funds includes

Legal and Professional charees 396.61 41.75
Audit Fee 12.89 9.36
409.49 5111

23.3 Payments to auditor (excluding goods and services tax)

Statutory audit 3.50 3.50
Tax audit : 0.50 0.50
Reimbursement of expenses 0.02 0.02

4.02 4.02

23.4 Corporate social responsibility (*CSR") expenditure

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 15.80 12.68
(b} Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 15.80 12.68
(¢) Amount spent during the vear (in cash) :
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 19.30 11.00
(d) Contributions to Northern Arc Foundation (wholly 19.30 11.00

Details of other than ongoing project
(e) Carry forward balances of CSR pre-spent*

. Opening balance - pre-spent / (shortfalls) (3.27) (1.59)
Amount required to be spent during the year (15.80) (12.68)
Amount spent during the year 19.30 11.00
Closing balance - pre-spent / (shortfalls)** 0.23 (3.27)

* Contribution to Northern Arc Foundation has been spent on educational activities,
* The company has not spent any amount on ongoing projects. Accordingly, no disclosures are made in this regard.
** Excess contribution to CSR activities in a particular year cannot be carried forward to subsequent years




Northern Are Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
24 Income fax
A The components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 are:
Current tax 320.43 327.45
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) (48.54) (19.66)
Tax expense 271.89 307.79

B Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at
India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for
the years ended :-

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit before tax 1,156.91 1,198.60
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed expected tax expense 291.17 301.66
Permanent differences (19.32) 6.13
Change in tax rate 0 -
Tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 271.89 307.79
Effective tax rate 23.50% 25.68%

Note: The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, as introduced
by the Taxation laws (Amendment) Act, 2019, Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax and remeasured its
net deferred tax asset at lower tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2023

C Deferred tax
The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense.

As at Statement of  Other comprehensive As at
March 31, 2022 profit and loss income Mareh 31, 2023
Component of Deferred tax asset / (liability)
Deferred tax asset / (liability) in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment 0.96 0.41 - 1.37
Provision for employee benefits 20.05 17.62 3.70 41.37
Impact of fair value of assets (93.27) 30.51 - (62.76)
Total (72.26) 48.54 3.70 (20.02)
As at Statement of  Other comprehensive As at
March 31, 2021 profit and loss income March 31, 2022
Compenent of Deferred tax asset / (liability)
Deferred tax asset / (liability) in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment 0.49 0.47 - 0.96
Provision for employee benefits 9.89 4.36 5.80 20.05
Impact of fair value of assets (108.10) 14.83 - (93.27)
Total (97.72) 19.66 5.80 (72.26)

This space is intentionally left blank
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25 Financial instruments
A Fair value measurement
Valuation principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 2 liability in an orderly ransaction in the prinicipal (or most advantageous)

market at the measurement date under current market conditions ie.. exit price. This 15 regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using a valuation rechnique,

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value as of March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Note Mar-23 Mar-22 Mar-23 Mar-22
Investinents
- Alternate Investment Funds # 5 3.335.51 4,639.03 - -
# Fair value for lny in Al In Funds are under Level 3 Category.
Sensitivity annlysiv - Increase/ decrease of 100 busis points on yield
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Investments
- Alternate Investment Funds 29.88 29.88 46.17 46,17

The carrying value and fair value of other financial instruments by categories as of March 31. 2023 and March 3 1. 2022 as follows:

Carrying value Fair value
Particulsrs Mar-23 Mar-22 Mar-23 Mar-22

Financial assets not measured at fair value;

Trade recervables * 901.61 92.24 901.61 92.24

Cash and cash equivalents® 30.80 122,99 30.80 122,99

Other Financial assets * 53063 23419 530.65 234.19
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value:

Borrowings * 169,43 1.389.88 16943 1.389.88

Trade payables* 38444 186.57 38444 186.57

Other financial liabilities* 44758 359.12 447.58 359.12

* The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents. trade receivables, other financial assets. borrowings. trade payables and other financial liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

B Measurement of fuir values

Valuation methodologies of financial instr not ed at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial nstruments which are not recorded and measured at fair
value in the financial statements. These fair values were caleulated for disclosure purposes only,

Financial assets and liabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a shor-tean maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are
a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables
and other financial liabilities without a specific maturity.

Borrowings and other financial linbilities
The borrowings and other financial liabilities are primarily fixed rate mstruments. The interest rates approximates the current market rates for similar
instruments with similar terms. Accordingly. the fair value has been assumed to be equal to the carrying amount,

Transfers between levels I, I and HI
There has been no transter in between level 1. level 11 and level 111,

C  Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

The board of dircctors seeks 1o maintain a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position.
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The Company's Gearing Ratio is as follows:

Asat Asat

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Total Borrowings 16943 1.389.88

Less: cash and cash equivalents (30.80) (122.99)
Adjusted net debt 138.63 1,266.89
Total equity 4.638.63 3.756.76
Gearing Ratio 0.03 0.34

26 Financial risk management objectives and policies

()

A,

The main purpose of financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to support its operations, The Company's financial assets primarily
includes investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to credit risk. liquidity risk and market risk. The C ompany's board of directors has an overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Company's nisk management framework,

The Company’s risk management policies arc cstablished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company s activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer ot counter-party to financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans,

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure,

Receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charactenistics of each customer. However, management also considers the
factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for receivables by type of counterparty is as follows. All these exposures are with in India.

Particulars Carrying Amount
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Management fee receivable 901.61 92.24
Less : Impairment loss allowance - -
Total 901.61 92.24

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to identify expected losses on account
of time value of money and credit risk. For the purposes of this analysis. the receivables are categorised into groups based on days past due and the type of
risk exposures. Each group is then assessed for impainment using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model as per the provisions of Ind AS 109 - financial
instruments.
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B.

{ii)

(i)

Investments

Invesiments primarily represents investments in alternative investment fimds which are fair valued through profit and loss and hence no impainment loss
allowance is made in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company does not have any deposits with banks.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the C ompany will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its Bnancial liabilities. The C oinpany's

approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient finds to meet its liabilities when due,

The Company is monitoring its liguidity risk by estimating the future inflows and outflows during the start of the year and planned accordingly the funding
requirement. The Company manages its liquidity by unutilised cash credit facility and term loans,

The composition of the Company's liability mix ensures healthy asset liability maturity pattern and well diverse resource mix.

The table below summuarises the maturity profile of the Company’'s non derivative financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payinents along
with its carrying value as at the balance sheet date.

Particulars Upto 1 year Over 1 year to3  Over 3 year to Over 5 year
year 5 year

As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings 16943 - -

As at March 31, 2022
Borrowings 163.93 1,225 95 - -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fi b of changes in warket prices. Market risk
includes interest rate risk and foreign currency tisk. The objective of market risk manag 5 to pe and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the retumn.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The
Company does not have any variable rate financial instruments and thus have 1o exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates.
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28.1

28.2

Contingent Liabilities and capital commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
- Income tax related matters

Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022

1247

1247

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to State administered fund for quahtying employees The Company 15 required to contribute a spectfied percentage of the
payroll costs 1o the Fund The Company recogmised INR 43 49 Takhs (March 31, 2022 27 69 lakhs) towards Provident Fund contributions n the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The contributrons payable to the fund by the Company 15 at rates specified m the rules of the scheme

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme 15 a defined plan The € ompany's net obligation n respect of a defined benefit plan 15 caleulated by estimating the amount of future

benefit that employees have earned i retum for their services in the current and prior periods, that benefit 15 discounted to determine its present
services and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted The Caleulation of the € ompany's oblization under the plan is performed annually

projected unit credit method

Details of actuarial valuation of gratuity pursuant to the Ind AS 19

A. Change in present value of March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Present value of obligations at the beginning of the year 46 66 1766
Current service cost 1064 502
Interest cost 3o 091
Past service cost . "
Benefits settled = i
Actuarial {gamn)/ foss 5118 2307
Present value of obligations at the end of the year 111.50 46.66
B. Change in plan asscts
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year = i
Expected return on plan assets - -
Actuarral gain/ {loss) " =
Employer contributions = =
Benefits settled -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
C. Actual Return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assets ” <
Actuarial gan/ (loss) on plan assets = -
Actual return on plan assets = >
D, Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair vaiue of the plan assets
Change in projected benefit obligation
Present value of oblizgations at the end of the vear 11150 46 66
Fawr value of plan assets - -
Net liability recognised in balance sheet 111.50 46.66
The liability in respect of the gratuity plan comprises of the following nen-current and current portions:
Current 17.73 6 a3
Nen-current 93.77 40.23
111.50 46.66
Year ended Year eaded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
E. Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
Current service cost 1064 502
Interest on obligation 302 0.91
Past service cost - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net actuartal {2amn ) loss recogrused n the year 328 2507
Total included in "employee benefits’ in statement of profit and loss and other com prehensive income 18,94 29.00
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 428 593
Expense recogmsed in Other Comprehensive Income t4.66 23.07
18,94 29,00
Add: Transfer from Holding Company (en account of employee wansfer) 4590 -
Total included in "employee benefits' 6484 29.00

value. Any unrecogmsed past
by a qualified actuary using the
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a)

by

29

Em ployee benefits {continued)

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

F. Assumptions at balance sheet
Discount rate T15% 6 48%
Salary escalation 800% 8 00%
Mortality rate Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
{2012-14) {2002-14)
15 00% 15 38%

Attrition rate

Notes:
The estimates m future salary mereases, considered m actuarial valuation, takes account of mflation, semority promotion and other relevant factors. such as supply and demand n

the emplovee market
Discount rate 1s based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obhigation

G Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanal assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit

obligation by the amounts shown below

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 106.80 I16.64 44 00 49 63
Future salary growth { 120 movement) 11695 106.43 4978 4381
Attrition Rate { 1% movement) L1115 11886 4623 4711

Em ployee stock option plan (ESOP)

Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 (ESOP) has been approved by the Board of holding company at its meeting held on May 11, 2016 and by the members in the Extra Ordnary
General Meeting held on October 7. 2016, ESOP Stock Option Plan 2018 (ESOP) has been approved by the members in the Extra Ordmary General Meeung held on July 25,

208

Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 — (“Scheme 1) formerly IFMR Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 — (“Scheme 1™)
The Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 is apphicable to all employees of the company and its subsidiaries

The options were 1ssued on | March 2017, with an exercise price of INR 10 The options vests over a period of 4 years in 40°20'20:20 proportion

Narthern Are Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 = (“Scheme 27) formerly TFMR Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2006 - (" Plan"” or "ESOP") (*Scheme
)

The Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 15 applicable to all employees.

The options were 1s5ued in four batches. The first and second batch was 1ssued at a price of INR 110, third and fourth batch issued with an exercise price of INR 121 The
oplions are vested equally over a period of 5 years

Northern Are Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 — ("Plan" or "ESOP") (“Scheme 3")
The Northern Are Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 is apphicable to all employees.
The options were issued in two batches. The first and second batch was issued at an exercise price of INR 18] The options are vested over a period of 3 years in 30 3040

proportion
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Options outstanding under Scheme 1, Scheme 2 and Scheme 3

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022
Plan Scheme | Scheme 2 Scheme 3 Scheme | Scheme 2 Scheme 3
Grant date Vartous Various Various Various Varous Various
Number of options 24000 2.24.000 106,518 30.000 2.25.000 1,172,720
Exercise price in INR 10 11010 275 181 10 275 10 110 o 181 181
Vesting period | tor 4 vears | to'5 years 1 to 3 years | to 5 years I to 3 years
Option Price 11365 39 28-40 89 65 379233 11363 33954089 63 71-73.55
Werghted average exercise price in
INR 10 18204 21033 £4] 182.04 20665
Weighted averase remaimng
contractual life {in vears) - - 055 - 17 0Tl
Vesting condition Time based vesting
Reconciliation of outstanding options
The detarls of options granted under the above schemes are as follows
Particulars Number of options
As at As at

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Outstanding at begmning of year 3.56,518 262518
Forfeiled during the year 2.000 .
Exercised durmg the vear - =
Granted during the year - 94,000
Outstanding as at end of year 354518 3.,56,518

Vested and exercisable as at end of year -

Fair value methodology

The fair value of options have been estimated on the dates of each grant using the Black-Scholes model The shares of Holding Company are not histed on any stock exchange
Accordingly. the Holding Company had considered the volanlity of the stock price based on historical volatility of similar listed enterprises. The various iputs considered i the
pricmg model for the stock options eranted by the Company during the year are as follows

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022

Dividend yield 0% -

Historical Volathty Estimate 48 34% 48.12%
Risk free interest rate 5.66% 561%
Expected hfe of the option (in years) 430 3155

30 Segment reporting

Operating segments

The Company's operations p itly relate 1o Alternative funds The mformation relatng to this operating segment 15 reviewed regularly by the
Company’s Board of Directors (Chief Operating Decision Maker) to make decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its performance The CODM considers the
entire business of the Company on a holistic basis 1o make operating decistons and thus there are no segregated operating segments The CODM of the Company reviews the
operating results of the Company as a whole and therefore not more than one reportable segment 1s required to be disclosed by the Company as envisaged by Ind AS 108
Operating Segments

The company daes not have any separate geographic seament other than India. As such there are no separate reportable segments as per IND AS 108 Operating Segments
31 Related party disclosures

Related party relationships and transactions are as wdentified by the management

Related party relati ips and tr are as identified by the management.

Holding Company :
Northem Arc Capital Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries :
Northern Arc Investment Adviser Services Private Limited
Morthern Arc Secunities Private Limited
Pragati Finsery Limited
Northern Are Foundation
Morthern Are Capital Employee Welfare Trust

Managed funds:
IFMR Flmpact Long Term Multi Asset Class Fund
IFMR Flmpact Long Term Credit Fund
IFMR Flmpact Medwm Term Opp Fund
IFMR Flmpact Income Builder Fund
Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund
Northern Arc India Impact Fund
Northern Are Income Builder Fund (Series !1)
Northern Arc Emerging Corporates Bond Fund

Key management personnel
Kshama Fernandes, Executive non-independent Chairperson
Ashish Mehrotra, Non-executive Director
Chaitanya Pande. Non-executive Director
Theodoor Brouwers, Non-executive Director
Nichelas Anthony Moon, Non-gxecutive Director
_Ravi Vukkadala, Chiet exeeutive Officer
Kalyanasundaram C, Chief Financial Officer *

* Remu;;érilmn\ paid by the holding company to the Chief Financial Officer
4
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Related party disclosures (continued)

Transaction with related parties during the year:

4 Year ended Year ended
Related P
hoia i i March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Northern Arc Capital Limited Interest expense 89.05 213,77
Fee Expenses 260,97 12927
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 204.72 152.75
Fund operating fee 20472 152.75
Purchase of Fixed Assets - 10.53
Loans taken 231L13 737348
Loans repaid 3.731.57 8,322.00
Northem Arc Foundation Caorporate social responsibility (“CSR™) expenditure 19.30 11.00
IFMR Flmpact Long Termy Multi Fee Income 124.69 54234
Asset Class Fund Income from investment in AIT 14,08 89.28
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 11.36 325
Fund operating fee 11.36 3.25
IFMR Fimpact Medium Tenm Microfi Fund Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 6,19 ]
Fund operating fee 6,19 -
IFMR Fimpact Long Term Credit Fee Income 285.14 285.14
Fund Income from investment in AIF 80.01 8155
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 7.72 18]
IFMR Fimpact Medium Term Fee Income 38221 37844
Opportunities Fund Income from investment in AIF 98.60 99.79
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 11.64 27.38
Fund operating fee 11.64 27.38
IFMR Fimpact Income Builder Fee Income 5971 229.42
Fund Income from mvestment in AIF 95.79 171.33
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 8.27 1.82
Fund operating fee 827 1.82
Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Investment in Class B units 7028 63.08
Fund Fee Income 677.40 396.22
Income from investment in AIF 114.03 100.05
Fund operating fee 106.02 67.57
Northern Arc Income Builder Fund Investment in Class A units - 2510
(Series 11) Investment in Class B units - 6,879.00
Sale of investments - Class B unils - 6.960.00
Fee Income 525.00 386.17
Income from investment in AIF 92.49 58.14
Loss on sale of investment - 127.13
Fund operating fee 74,15 54.54
Northem Are India Impact Fund Investment in Class A units - 400,00
Fee Income 667.31 99.56
Income from investment in AIF 7374 2554
Fund operating fee 12570 18.57
Northern Arc Emerging Corporate Investment in Class B units 250,00 -
Bond Fund Fee Income 2219 -
Income from investment in AIF 573 -
Fund operating fee 3.61 -
Kshama Fernandes Remuneration® 285.00 e
Employee stock option granted (in units) 8.1 -
Ravi Vukkadala Remuneration” 200,44 147.93
Employee stock option granted {in units} 1.78 1.78

1

* Amount attributable 1o post employ

have not been disclosed as the same cannot be identified distinetly in the actuarial valuation,
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Related party disclosures (continued)

Qutstanding balances with related parties as on balance sheet date:

Asat Asat

Transaction
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Related Party

MNorthern Arc Capital Limited Equity share capital 361.00 361.00
Advances payable - 140.30
Other payable 324.61 15132
Borrowings 169,43 1,389.88
Other receivables 61.33 -
Rembursement of Legal and professional charges receivable 204.72 152,75
Employee Stock option related payables 167.82 159.13
IFMR, Fimpact Investment fund Reimbursenient of expense receivable - 0.17
IFMR Flmpact Long Term Multi Investment in class A (FV) - 950.00
Asset Class Fund Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 1136 325
IFMR Fimpact Medium Term Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 6.19 0.25
Microfinance Fund
IFMR Flmpact Long Term Credit Investment in class A (FV}) 543.70 50000
Fund Fee Income Receivable 7593 -
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 772 1.81
IFMR Fimpact Medium Term Investment in class A (FV) - 500.00
Oppertunities Fund Fee Income Receivable 105,89 1.60
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 11.64 2738
IFMR Flmpact [ncome Builder Investment in class A (FV} - 500,00
Fund Remmbursement of Legal and professional charges 827 182
Northern Are Money Market Alpha Investment in class B (FV) 1,264.06 1,167.38
Fund Fee Income Receivable 181.48 54.02
Fund operating fee receivable 2812 13.76
Northern Are Income Builder Fund Investment in class A (FV) 725.60 500.00

{Series 1) Fee Income Receivable 139.81 2.63

Fund operating fee receivable 60.12 -
Norhern Arc India Impact Fund Investiment in class A (FV) 550.04 500,00
Fee Income Receivable 194.96 3483
Fund operating fee receivable 36.50 6.71
Northern Arc Emerging Bond Fund Investment in class B (V) 252,11 -
Fee Income Receivable 19.98 -
Fund operating fee receivable 13.32 -
Ravi Vukkadala Employee stock option (in units) 1.78 1.78
Kshama Fernandes Employee stock option {in units) 8.11 =

The Company has been appointed as the i
a) by the Trustee of IFMR Finance for Freedom Fund ("the Fund”), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.5% per annum on
the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee income’ under Note 19,

b) by the Trustee of IFMR Finance for Freedom Fund 111 ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives

on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee income' under Note 19.

fee of 1.5% per annun

¢) by the Trustee of IFMR Finance for Freedom Fund IV ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.5% per annum
on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as "Fee income’ under Note 19,

d) by the Trustee of IFMR Finance for Freedom Fund V {"the Fund”), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.35% per annum
on the capital commitied by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as "Fee income’ under Note 19,

f) by the Trustee of Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 0.40% per
annum on the Assets under management of the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee Income’ under Note 19,

2} by the Trustee of Northern Arc India lmpact Fund ("the Fund"), Axis Trusiee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.5% per annum on
the capital committed by Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and diselosed as 'Fee Income’ under Note 19,

) by the Trustee of Morthern Arc Emergmg Corporate Bond Fund ("the Fund”}, Amicorp Trustees (India) Private Limited | for which the Company receives management
fee of 1.5% per annum on the capital committed by Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee Income’ under Note 19,
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Related party disclosures {continued)

h) by the Trustee of Northern Are Income Builder Fund Sereres 11 (“the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limuted. for which the Company receves management fee of | 3% per
annum on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as "Fee lneome' under Note 19

Earnings per share— Basic and Diluted:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Earnings
Net profit atnibutable to equity shareholders for caleulation of basic EPS 91284 890 81
Net profit attnibutable to equity shareholders for calculation of diluted EPS 91284 800.81
Shares
Equuty shares at the beammng of the period 3.61.000 301000
Shares issued during the penod = 7
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the period 3,61,000 3,601,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of basic EPS 3.61.000 3.61.000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstandmg during the year for caleulation of diluted EPS 3.61.,000 3.61.000
Face value per share 10000 100 00
Earning per share
Basic (in rupees) 25286 24676
25286 246,76

Diluted {in rupees)
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Northern Are Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yearended March 31, 2023
(AN amounts are in Indian Rupees m lakhs, ynless otherwise stated)
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Other Statutory Information
The company does not have any Benams property, where any proceeding hias been initiated or pending aganst the company for holding any Benamy property

The company 15 not decleared as wilful defaul by any bank of financial mstuton or other lender

The company do nat have any transactions wath comparnies struck off
The company do not have any charses or satisfaction which 1s vetto be rewistered with ROC bevond the statutory period,

The campany have not traded or invested in Crvpto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

There company has not provided any loans to directors or has investments made or given and in respect p of Section 185 and 186 of the Compares Act 2016

As part of the normal business, the Company obtains borrowings fram s holding company and ivests i altermative investment fund managed by the Company The AIFs invests in debt

nstruments issued by vanious ongmators based on decision made by the of the resp funds. These transactions are part of the Company’s normal investment
/b . which is conducted after proper due dil Tuding adh, 10 terms of Privare Pl dum of respective ATFs and other gundelines

Other than the nature of transactions described ahove,
1} No funds have been advanced or loans or invested by the Company to or in any other personis) or entitylies) (- d ) wath the und ding that the 1 drary shall lend or
st i party dentified by or on behalf of the Company (*Ulumate beneficiaries”)
1} The Company has not received any find from any party(s){ Funding Party) wath the understanding that the Company shall whether, direetly or ndirectly lend or invest in other PErsons or
entities identifizd by or on behalf ot the Company ("Ulnmate beneficiaries™) or provide Ay guarantee, seeunty or the like on behalt of the Ultimate Beneficianes

The company have not any such transaction which 1 not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year i the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax ‘Act, 196],

The company maintains proper books of account as required by law, except that such books of accounts are not accessible India and the Company doas not have server physically locared

n India for the darly back-up of the books of account and other books and papers mamtained in electronic mode

Previous year's figures
Previows vear's figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's classification | p ! i pli

As per our report of even date attached

for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accomtants Morthern Ave Investment Managers Private Limited
ICAl Firn's Registration No. 1 01049W/E300004 CIN UT4120TN2014PTCO95064
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per Bharath N S Kshama Fernandes vi Vukkadala
Parmer Director Chief Executive Officar
Membership No. 210934 DIN 02539429

Place  Chennar

Date  May 9, 2023
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Devanshi Shah Kalyanasundaram C
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. AsS481

Place  Mumba Place: Chenna
Date  May 9, 2023 Date May 9, 2023
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